
  

 
 

 

Nottingham City Council 

Companies Governance Executive Committee 

 
Date: Tuesday, 22 February 2022 
 
Time:  3.00 pm (or at the rising of Executive Board, whichever is the later) 
 
Place: Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, 

NG2 3NG 
 
Please see the information at the bottom of this agenda front sheet about the 
measures for ensuring Covid-safety 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 
 

 
Director for Legal and Governance 
 
Governance Officer: Phil Wye     Direct Dial: 0115 876 4637 
 
 
Agenda 

 
 Pages 

1  Apologies for absence  
 

 

2  Declarations of interest  
 

 

3  Minutes  
To confirm the minutes of the last meeting held on 18th January 2022 
 

3 - 6 

4  Work Programme  
For discussion and noting 
 

7 - 8 

5  Council owned company discussion - Nottingham City Transport  
 

9 - 38 

6  Exclusion of the public  
To consider excluding the public from the meeting during consideration 
of the remaining items in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the basis that, having regard to all the 
circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



7  Council owned company discussion - Nottingham City Transport  
 

39 - 60 

8  Council owned companies - financial update  
Report of the Interim Corporate Director for Finance and Resources 
 

61 - 84 

9  Exempt minutes  
To confirm the exempt minutes of the last meeting held on 18 January 
2022 
 

85 - 86 

All items listed ‘under exclusion of the public’ will be heard in private. They have been 
included on the agenda as no representations against hearing the items in private were 
received 

 

If you need any advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please contact 
the Governance Officer shown above, if possible before the day of the meeting  
 

Citizens attending meetings are asked to arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the 
meeting to be issued with visitor badges 

In order to hold this meeting in as Covid-safe a way as possible, all attendees are: 

 asked to maintain a sensible level of social distancing from others as far as 
practically possible when moving around the building and when entering and 
leaving the meeting room. As far as possible, please remain seated and maintain 
distancing between seats throughout the meeting; 

 strongly encouraged to wear a face covering when entering and leaving the meeting 
room and throughout the meeting, unless you need to remove it while speaking to 
enable others to hear you. This does not apply to anyone exempt from wearing a 
face covering; 

 asked to make use of the hand sanitiser available and, when moving about the 
building, follow signs about traffic flows, lift capacities, etc. 

 

Citizens are advised that this meeting may be recorded by members of the public. Any 
recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in accordance with the Council’s 
policy on recording and reporting on public meetings, which is available at 
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk. Individuals intending to record the meeting are asked to notify 
the Governance Officer shown above in advance. 

 

http://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/


1 

Nottingham City Council  
 

Companies Governance Executive Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held at Loxley House, Nottingham on 18 January 2022 
from 3.00 pm - 4.39 pm 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor David Mellen (Chair) 
Councillor Sally Longford (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Neghat Khan 
Councillor Sam Webster 
Councillor Linda Woodings 
 

 
 

 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Lisa Black - Director of Operations, Nottingham Revenues and Benefits 

Ltd 
Ian Edward - Strategic Advisor for Companies 
Honorary Alderman 
Brian Grocock 

- Chair of Board, Nottingham Revenues and Benefits Ltd 

Clive Heaphy - Corporate Director for Finance and Resources 
David Marshall - Principal Accountant, Nottingham Revenues and Benefits 

Ltd 
Phil Wye - Governance Officer 
 
 
Call-in 
This agenda does not contain and decisions eligible for call-in. 
 
51  Apologies for Absence 

 
None. 
 
52  Declarations of Interests 

 
In relation to items 5 and 7 (Council owned company discussion) in the interests of 
transparency Councillor Sam Webster declared that he was a Board member of 
Nottingham Revenues and Benefits Ltd. 
 
53  Minutes 

 
The Committee agreed the minutes of the meeting held on 21 December 2021 as a 
correct record and they were signed by the Chair. 
 
54  Work Plan 

 
The Committee noted the work plan for 2021/22 and that a refreshed work plan will 
be brought to the next meeting. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Companies Governance Executive Committee - 18.01.22 

2 

 
55  Council owned company discussion - Nottingham Revenues and 

Benefits Ltd 
 

This item does not contain any decisions which are eligible for call-in. 
 
The Committee received a presentation by Lisa Black, Director of Operations at 
Nottingham Revenues and Benefits Ltd (NRB), which highlighted the following: 
 
(a) NRB was formed on 1st November 2014 as a Public Sector owned company. 

Originally NRB was contracted to Northgate Public Services to deliver Revenue 
and Benefits services but this contract ended on 31st October 2021 and NRB now 
works directly for Nottingham City Council (NCC). NRB’s primary client is NCC 
but it also has contracts with other local authorities and private sector companies 
who deliver revenues and benefits services; 
 

(b) NRB’s Board of Directors meets quarterly and is made up of 3 serving Councillors 
and 3 external Directors. The Chair is a former Councillor external to NRB and 
NCC. The Board sets the budget, monitors financial performance, monitors 
contractual performance, reviews commercial activity and reviews risk;  
 

(c) governance with clients includes routine monitoring and reporting of performance 
across a range of key performance indicators, working with clients to respond to 
changes and forward planning to deal with any changes in policy, practice or local 
needs; 
 

(d) NRB’s business plan is due to be refreshed in 2022. It will include the 12 key 
performance measures for the primary contract with NCC, achievement of a 
sustainable financial position for the Company, commercial growth, the protection 
of existing jobs and opportunity for new jobs. NRB would like to expand and 
provide even more value to the Council by taking the opportunity to streamline, 
consolidate and increase efficiency where possible; 
 

(e) during the national lockdown, starting in March 2020, 90% of the workforce 
worked from home and most continue to do so. All services were successfully 
maintained including telephone services; 
 

(f) NRB is financially stable with a low risk profile and no outstanding loans, and is 
forecasting a profit for 2021/22. A risk register is reviewed monthly and annually 
by the Board; 
 

(g) NRB has a place in the market due to its stability of resource and skills, and 
existing customers have confidence in the company and return. It would like to 
build more of a visible commercial presence with further marketing and website 
development. 

 
During discussion and in response to questions, the following points were raised: 
 
(h) NRB currently has no Shareholder Representative on its Board; 

 

Page 4



Companies Governance Executive Committee - 18.01.22 

3 

(i) new technology is currently being introduced that will align with NCC’s self-service 
portal for the first time. Other new technology such as chat-bots for online advice 
are also being considered; 
 

(j) NRB has always had a strong relationship with the advice sector and will refer 
customers where necessary. Early intervention is becoming increasingly 
beneficial to avoid debt recovery measures; 
 

(k) the Director of NRB attends some working groups at NCC but is not invited to 
more senior discussions such as Directors’ Forums. Regular meetings between 
the Directors of NCC owned companies and NCC senior officers should be 
facilitated so that messages are disseminated and knowledge is shared.  

 
Resolved to 
 

(1) record the thanks of the Committee to Ms Black for her attendance and 
informative presentation; 
 

(2) explore the possibility of meetings for Council-owned company directors 
to meet together and with Council officers. 

 
56  Exclusion of the public 

 
The Committee agreed to exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of 
the remaining items in accordance with Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 
1972 on the basis that having regard to all the circumstances, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the 
information, as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act, as the 
sensitive nature of the business affairs under consideration could, if made public, 
prejudice the ability of the companies concerned to operate effectively in a 
competitive market. 
 
57  Council owned company discussion - Nottingham Revenues and 

Benefits Ltd 
 

This item does not contain any decisions that are eligible for call-in. 
 
The Committee received a presentation by Lisa Black, Director of Operations at 
Nottingham Revenues and Benefits Ltd. 
 
58  Council owned companies - financial update 

 
This item does not contain any decisions that are eligible for call-in. 
 
Ian Edward, Strategic Advisor for Companies, presented the report, updating the 
Committee on the latest position in respect of Council owned companies. 
 
Resolved to note the update. 
 
Reason for recommendation: 
To ensure the sub-committee understands the current financial position of the group 

Page 5



Companies Governance Executive Committee - 18.01.22 

4 

of companies of Nottingham City Council and any risks highlighted in the report for 
action. 
 
Other options considered: 
None. 
 
59  Exempt Minutes 

 
The Committee agreed the exempt minutes of the last meeting held on 21 December 
2021 as a correct record and they were signed by the Chair. 
 

Page 6



 

 
2022 
 

  22 February 22 March 19 April 17 May 

 
P 
U 
B 
L 
I 
C 
 

 
Company presentation –  
Nottingham City Transport (NCT) 

 
No Public discussion 

 
Company presentation -   
Futures Advice and Skills 

 
Company presentation –  
Blue Print Ltd 

 
 
 
 

E 
X 
E 
M 
P 
T 
 
 

 
Company presentation –  
Nottingham City Transport (NCT) 

 
Companies’ progress update 

 
Company presentation –  
Futures Advice and Skills 

 
Company presentation – 
Blue Print Ltd 
 

 
Companies’ financial update 
 

 
Companies’ financial update 

 
Companies’ financial update 

 
Companies’ financial update 

As required: 

 
Significant change in existing company plans 

 

 
Approval of new company business case / formation/ Governance Proposals 

 

 
2022 
 

  21 June 19 July 20 September 18 October 

 
P 
U 
B 
L 
I 
C 
 

 
No Public discussion 

 
Company presentation Nottingham 
City Homes 

 
Company presentation -   
Nottingham Ice Centre Ltd 

 
No Public discussion 

 
 
 
 

E 
X 
E 
M 
P 
T 
 
 

 
Companies’ progress update  

 
Company presentation –  
Nottingham City Homes 

 
Company presentation –  
Nottingham Ice Centre Ltd 

 
Companies Annual review 
2021/22 

 
Companies’ financial update 
 

 
Companies’ financial update 

 
Companies’ financial update 

 
Companies’ Annual financial 
update 2021/22 
 

As required: 

 
Significant change in existing company plans 

 

 
Approval of new company business case / formation/ Governance Proposals 

 

 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



2022 
 

  22 November 20 December 

 
P 
U 
B 
L 
I 
C 
 

 
Company presentation –  
Scape 

 
No Public discussion 

 
 
 
 

E 
X 
E 
M 
P 
T 
 
 

 
Company presentation –  
Scape 

 
Companies’ progress update  

 
Companies’ financial update 

 
Companies’ financial update 

As required: 

 
Significant change in existing company plans 

 

 
Approval of new company business case / formation/ Governance Proposals 

 

 

P
age 8



Nottingham City Transport
Presentation to:

CGESC – 22nd February 2022

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 5



NCT Executive Team
David Astill, Rob Hicklin, Ben Potgieter

P
age 10



NCC Non- Executive Directors
Graham Chapman, Audra Winter, 
Angharad Roberts, Phil Jackson

P
age 11



Two other non‐executive directors

• Alex Hornby – Transdev PLC
• Barry Hutton – employee director

P
age 12



The Board

• Meets 5 times a year
– 4 regular
– 1 business planning – 3 year plan – shareholder agreement

• Monitors financial and operational performance –
report form each area of the business

• “Board KPIs”
• Reviews the coming quarter

P
age 13



The last 2 years

• Q2 202 – 800 furloughed employees – skeleton 
service – 170 drivers volunteered

• Since July 2020 – near full service
• Financed by major government support  ‐ significant 
sector specific grants, as well as some “as normal” 
local/central government payments

P
age 14



Currently…

• “Stable” as we speak 
• Patronage returning ‐ NCT is about average, UK wise
• Cash flows acceptable
• Much depends on the next 12 months, the industry 
as a whole is waiting on further funding or the “cliff 
edge” will likely result in cuts to service to “balance 
the books”

P
age 15



The next 2 or 3 years

• Return to necessary profitability
• Electric conversion of single deck fleet via 
ZEBRA funding

• Further CNG double deckers in 2022
• DD future?
• Supporting the City as it reshapes.

P
age 16



P
age 17



P
age 18



Bus Driver of the Year

P
age 19



Service Features
Turning Up On 

Time
Running 

Frequently
Having Friendly 

Drivers
Able to Get a 

Seat
Offering Value 

for Money

2018 88% 90% 92% 91% 88%
Previous 3 Years

2017 81% 87% 90% 87% 87%
2016 71% 86% 87% 76% 76%
2015 84% 89% 87% 87% 84%

10 Year High
- 88% (2018) 90% (2018) 92% (2018) 91% (2018) 88% (2018)

P
age 20



Public Transport Patronage Changes

P
age 21



P
age 22



P
age 23



P
age 24



• £1.30 U19 single
• £2.50 U19 Cityrider all day
• £1.50 adult short hop
• £2.40 adult single
• £4.40 Cityrider all day
• £6.00 Grouprider (up to 5)

Simple fares!

P
age 25



Smartcard payments
• Introduced ‘smartcard ticketing’ in 2000
• Easyrider Everyday – adult, U19, Student
• Easyrider Anyday – adult, U19, Student
• Concessionary free travel
• 2/3 of all transactions

P
age 26



NCT App & Mobile ticketing
50% of day 
tickets now
Purchased 
through the 
App.

P
age 27



Multi‐operator
“integrated

ticketing”

P
age 28



Modern Buses & the 
decarbonisation 
agenda

P
age 29



Modern Buses & the 
decarbonisation 
agenda

P
age 30



Bus travel is a derived demand…….

P
age 31



P
age 32



P
age 33



P
age 34



‘Recovery Partnerships’

* removal of social distancing
* strong pro-public transport messages 

* passenger numbers to have returned in  significant numbers 

P
age 35



P
age 36



Thankyou for your attention

Questions?

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 39

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 61

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 77

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 81

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 85

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Work Programme
	5 Council owned company discussion - Nottingham City Transport
	7 Council owned company discussion - Nottingham City Transport
	8 Council owned companies - financial update
	Exempt item CGEC Financial summary position report 19-02-2022
	Feb 2022 Exempt item appendix 1 NIC
	Feb 2022 Exempt item appendix 3 NCH
	Feb 2022 Exempt item appendix 4 NRB
	Feb 2022 Exempt item appendix 5 Thomas Bow
	Feb 2022 Exempt item appendix 6 Blueprint
	Feb 2022 Exempt item appendix 7 Futures Dashboard
	Feb 2022 Exempt item appendix 7 Futures

	9 Exempt minutes

